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B& BOSCH & 
STATHAM 
Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Leslie Thompson, Mayor, 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Jonesboro, State of Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We were engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each 
major fund, of the Town of Jonesboro (the Town), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to ejqjress opinions on these financial statements based on conducting the engagement in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the Louisiana Governmental Audit 
Guide, issued by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor. Because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, 
however, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. 

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 

The basis for the disclaimer of opinions is twofold. First, since the fiscal year encompasses two administrations, we would not expect 
to receive the current mayor's signature on the management representation letter that is required for us to be able to issue unmodified 
opinions. Secondly, due to the nature of the findings, in our professional judgment, we cannot accept management's representation 
letter. 

Disclaimer of Opinion 

Because of the significance of the matters described in the "Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion" paragraph, we have not been able to 
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for audit opinions. Accordingly, we do not express opinions on the 
financial statements referred to in the first paragraph. 

Melissa Bosch, CPA (318) 475-1987 • Michael Statham, CPA (318) 355-9943 
609 North Trenton Street Ruston. Louisiana 71270 • Post Office Box 2377. Ruston. Louisiana 71273-2377 



Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 
Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30.2019 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison information (page 13-
17), schedule of employer's proportionate share of net pension liability (page 18-20), and schedule of employer contributions (page 
21-23) be presented to supplement the basic fmancial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained dining our audit of the basic financial statements. Because of the significance of the matters described in the "Basis for 
Disclaimer of Opinion" paragraph, it is inappropriate to and we do not express an opinion on the required supplementary information 
referred to above. 

Management has omitted Management's Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our 
opinion on die basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 7, 2021, on our consideration of the 
Town's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Town's intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town's intemal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

BOSCH & STATHAM. LLC 

Ruston, Louisiana 

May 7, 2021 



Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement A 

Statement of Net Position 
As of June 30, 2019 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-T)pe 
Activities 

Total 

Assets 

Cash and equivalents 

Investments 

Accounts receivable 

Cash and equivalents - restricted 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 

$ 458,072 

203,721 

1,579,328 

$ 14,192 

34,340 

120,724 

668,485 

6,646,659 

$ 472,264 

34,340 

324,445 

668,485 

8,225,987 

Total Assets 2,241,121 7,484,400 9,725,521 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Pension 788,886 184,980 973,866 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 788,886 184,980 973,866 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Cash overdraft 

Payroll liabilities 

Customer meter deposits 

Current portion of long-term liabilities 

Noncurrent portion of long-term liabilities 

19,858 

10,212 

33,343 

1,857,784 

39,254 

27,986 

219,583 

33,978 

2,465,747 

59,112 

38,198 

33,343 

219,583 

33,978 

4,323,531 

Total Liabilities 1,921,197 2,786,548 4,707,745 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Pension 160,690 16,223 176,913 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 160,690 16,223 176,913 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

1,579,328 

136,173 

(767,380) 

4,601,751 

219,583 

45,272 

6,181,079 

355,756 

(722,108) 

Total Net Position $ 948,121 $ 4,866,606$ 5,814,727 

3 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement B 

Functions/Programs 

Primary government 
Governmental activities 

General government 
Fire 

Police 

Sanitation 
Highways and streets 
Parks and recreation 

Total governmental 
activities 

Business-type activities 
Water and sewer 

Total primary government 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

General Revenues 
Taxes: 

Major Funds Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 

Ejqjenses Charges for 
Services 

Operating Grants 
and Contributions 

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

Govemmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities 

Total 

$ 1,122,600 
475,107 
587,171 
183,724 
993,453 

$ 303,680 

30,546 

$ 35 $ $ (818,885) 
(475,107) 
(556,625) 
(183,724) 
(993,453) 

$ $ (818,885) 
(475,107) 
(556,625) 
(183,724) 
(993,453) 

17,105 - - - (17,105) - (17,105) 

3,379,160 334,226 35 (3,044,899) - (3,044,899) 

1,401,953 926,064 54,460 (421,429) (421,429) 
$ 4,781,113 $ 1,260,290 $ 54,495 $ (3,044,899) (421,429) (3,466,328) 

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 345,953 - 345,953 
Sales taxes 1,771,042 - 1,771,042 
Franchise taxes 62,838 - 62,838 
Other taxes 3,732 - 3,732 

Licenses 82,346 - 82,346 
Intergovernmental 66,511 - 66,511 
Investment earnings 145 - 145 
Rental income 60,034 - 60,034 
Other revenue 204,257 719,772 924,029 
Operating transfers 476,107 (476,107) -

Total general revenues and transfers 3,072,965 243,665 3,316,630 
Change in net position 28,066 (177,764) (149,698) 
Net position - June 30, 2018 920,056 5,044,370 5,964,426 
Net position - June 30, 2019 4 $ 948,122 $ 4,866,606 $ 5,814,728 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement C 

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 
As of June 30, 2019 

Special Revenue Funds 

General Fund 
Fire Ad Street Ad Street Sales 

Total General Fund Valorem Tax Valorem Tax Tax Total 

Assets 

Cash and equivalents S 396,784$ 14,146 $ 30,550 $ 16,592 $ 458,072 
Accounts receivable 128,836 - - 74,885 203,721 

Total Assets 525,620 14,146 30,550 91,477 661,793 

Liabilities i& Fund Balances 
Liabilities: 

Accoimts payable $ 19,858 $ $ $ $ 19,858 

Cash overdraft 10,212 - - - 10,212 

Payroll liabilities 33,343 - - - 33,343 

Total Liabilities 63,413 - - - 63,413 

Fund balances: 

Nonspendable, reported in: 

Special revenue fund - - - - -

Restricted, reported in: 

Special revenue fund - 14,146 30,550 91,477 136,173 

Unassigned, reported in: 

General revenue fund 462,207 - - - 462,207 

Total Fund Balances 462,207 14,146 30,550 91,477 598,380 

Total Liabilities and Fund 
$ 30,550 $ 91,477 $ 661,793 S 525,620$ 14,146 $ 30,550 $ 91,477 $ 661,793 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement D 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Fluids Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 
As ofJune 30,2019 

Total Fund Balances at June 30, 2019 - Governmental Funds (Statement C) $ 598,379 

Total Net Position reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net 
Position (Statement A) are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, j ^28 
therfore, are not reported in governmental fluids, net of depreciation. ' ' 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Net pension liability (1,857,784) 

Deferred outflows of resources 788,886 

Deferred inflows of resources (160,690) 

NetPositionat June 30,2019 $ 948,119 

6 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement E 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Special Revenue Funds 

General Fund 
Fire Ad Street Ad Street Sales 

Total General Fund Valorem Tax Valorem Tax Tax Total 

Revenues 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem tax $ 142,326 $ 101,814 $ 101,814 S $ 345,954 

Franchise tax 62,838 - - - 62,838 

Sales tax 885,521 - - 885,521 1,771,042 

Other tax 3,732 - - - 3,732 

Licenses and permits 82,346 - - - 82,346 

Operating grant 35 - - - 35 

Intergovernmental 66,511 - - - 66,511 

Fines, forfeitures, and court costs 30,546 - - - 30,546 

Rent, royalty, and commission 60,034 - - - 60,034 

Charges for services 303,680 - - - 303,680 

Miscellaneous (5,474) - - - (5,474) 

Total revenues 1,632,095 101,814 101,814 885,521 2,721,244 

Expenditures 

Current: 

General government 836,592 - - - 836,592 

Public safety 

Police 611,431 - - - 611,431 

Fire 447,125 - - - 447,125 

Streets 952,347 - - - 952,347 

Sanitation 183,724 - - - 183,724 

Parks and recreation 17,105 - - - 17,105 

Total expenditures 3,048,324 - - - 3,048,324 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (1,416,229) 101,814 101,814 885,521 (327,080) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement E 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Interest earnings 

Operating transfers 
Total other financing sources 
(uses) 

Net changes in fund balances 

Fund balances - June 30, 2018 

Fund balances - June 30, 2019 

Special Revenue Funds 

General Fund 
Fire Ad Street Ad Street Sales 

Total General Fund Valorem Tax Valorem Tax Tax Total 

145 145 

1,498,520 (63,860) (24,050) (934,503) 476,107 

1,498,665 (63,860) (24,050) (934,503) 476,252 

82,436 37,954 77,764 (48,982) 149,172 

379,770 (23,808) (47,214) 140,459 449,207 

$ 462,206 $ 14,146 $ 30,550 $ 91,477 $ 598,379 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement F 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Funds Balances to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Total net change in Fund Balances - Governmental Fimds (Statement E) $ 149,171 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 
different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, 
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets capitalized over their 
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
capital outlay differs from depreciation for the period. 

Depreciation (164,426) 

Capital outlay 25,814 

Net pension liability decrease (increase) 17,507 

Change in net position of governmental activities (Statement B) $ 28,066 

9 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement G 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund 
As ofJune 30,2019 

Proprietary Fund -
Enterprise Funds 

Utility Fimd 

Assets 
Current Assets: 

Cash and equivalents 

Accounts receivable 

Total Current Assets 

Nonciurent Assets: 

Cash and equivalents - restricted 

Investments - restricted 
Capital assets (net of accmnulated depreciation) 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Pension 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Cash overdraft 

Current portion of long-term liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets: 

Customer meter deposits 
Long-Term Liabilities: 

Long-term liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Pension 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

14,192 
120,724 
134,916 

668,485 
34,340 

6,646,659 

7,349,484 
7,484,400 

184,980 
184,980 

39,254 

19,515 

33,978 
92,747 

219,583 

2,465,747 
2,778,077 

16,223 

16,223 

4,601,751 

219,583 
45,272 

4,866,606 

10 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement H 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Operating Revenues 

Charges for services 

Miscellaneous income 

Total operating revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Personnel services 

Supplies 

Utilities 

Repairs and maintenance 

Contractural services 

Miscellaneous 

Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Grant income 

Miscellaneous revenue 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before transfers 

Transfers 

Total transfers 

Change in net position 

Total Net Position - June 30,2018 

Total Net Position - June 30,2019 

Proprietary Fund -
Enterprise Funds 

Utility Fund 

926,064 

712,920 

1,638,984 

353,108 

137,295 

127,107 

232,200 

11,620 

269,360 

271,265 

1,401,955 

237,029 

54,460 

6,851 

61,311 

298,340 

(476,107) 

(476,107) 

(177,767) 

5,044,370 

4,866,603 

11 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



statement I 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from customers 

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 

Cash payments to employees for services 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

Cash flows from non-capital financing 
Transfers from other funds 

Operating grant 

Other expense 
Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Other revenue 

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and relaced financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest earnings 

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2018 
Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2019 

Reconciliation of operating income to net provided by operating 
activities 

Operating income 

Adjustments 

Depreciation 

Net changes in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 

Inventory 

Customers' security deposits 
Accounts payable 
Cash overdraft 

Current increase (decrease) in pension liability 

Net cash provided for (used for) operating activities 

Proprietary Fund -
Enterprise Funds 

Utility Fund 

1,498,231 
(735,894) 
(348,248) 

414,089 

(476,107) 
54,460 
(4,498) 

(426,145) 

6,851 

6,851 

(5,205) 

687,882 

682,677 

237,032 

271,265 

(46,715) 

25,621 

37,290 
(13,757) 
(94,766) 

(1,881) 

414,089 

12 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Schedule la 

Town of Jonesboro 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fimd 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Budget -
Original 

Actual 
Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem tax $ 128,200 $ 142,326 $ 14,126 

Franchise tax 100,000 62,838 (37,162) 

Sales tax 780,000 885,521 105,521 

Other tax 13,500 3,732 (9,768) 

Licenses and permits 78,100 82,346 4,246 

Operating grant 7,800 35 (7,765) 

Intergovernmental 74,700 66,511 (8,189) 

Fines, forfeitures, and court costs 50,000 30,546 (19,454) 

Rent, royalty, and commission 15,700 60,034 44,334 

Charges for services 269,300 303,680 34,380 

Miscellaneous 2,950 (5,474) (8,424) 

Total revenues 1,520,250 1,632,095 111,845 

Expenditures 

Current: 

General government 708,365 835,039 (126,674) 

Public safety 

Police 524,850 587,171 (62,321) 

Fire 395,825 447,125 (51,300) 

Streets 1,000,900 952,347 48,553 

Parks and recreation 21,000 17,105 3,895 

Sanitation 201,500 183,724 17,776 

Capital outlay - 25,814 (25,814) 

Total expenditures 2,852,440 3,048,325 (195,885) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

(1,332,190) (1,416,230) (84,040) 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

13 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Schedule la 

Town of Jonesboro 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fimd 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Budget -
Original 

Actual 
Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Interest earnings 500 145 (355) 

Operating transfers 1,330,000 1,498,520 168,520 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,330,500 1,498,665 168,165 

Net changes in fund balances (1,690) 82,435 84,125 

Fund balances - June 30,2018 188,347 188,347 _ 

Fund balances - June 30,2019 $ 186,657 $ 270,782 $ 84,125 

14 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Schedule lb 

Town of Jonesboro 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Fire Ad Valorem Tax 

For the Year Ended June 30,2019 

Budget -
Original 

Actual 
Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem tax $ $ 101,814 $ 101,814 

Total revenues _ 101,814 101,814 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

101,814 101,814 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Operating transfers - (63,860) (63,860) 

Total other financing sources (uses) _ (63,860) (63,860) 

Net changes in fund balances 

Fund balances - June 30, 2018 

Fund balances - June 30,2019 

(23,808) 

$ (23,808)$ 

37,954 

(23,808) 

14,146 $ 

37,954 

37,954 

15 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule Ic 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Streets Ad Valorem Tax 
For the Year Ended June 30,2019 

Budget -
Original 

Actual 
Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem tax $ $ 101,814 $ 101,814 

Total revenues _ 101,814 101,814 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Operating transfers - (24,050) (24,050) 

Total other financing sources (uses) _ (24,050) (24,050) 

Net changes in fund balances 

Fund balances - June 30, 2018 

Fund balances - June 30,2019 

(47,214) 

$ (47,214)$ 

77,764 

(47,214) 

30,550 $ 

77,764 

77,764 

16 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Schedule Id 

Town of Jonesboro 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Streets Sales Tax 

For the Year Ended June 30,2019 

Budget -
Original 

Actual 
Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues 

Taxes: 

Sales taxes $ $ 885,521 $ 885,521 

Total revenues _ 885,521 885,521 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Operating transfers - (934,503) (934,503) 

Total other financing sources (uses) _ (934,503) (934,503) 

Net changes in fund balances 

Fund balances - June 30, 2018 

Fund balances - June 30,2019 

140,459 

(48,982) 

140,459 

140,459 $ 91,477 $ 

(48,982) 

(48,982) 

17 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Schedule 2a 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability 
Municipal Employees Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

Employer's covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

0.332852% 0.288100% 0.284821% 0.259739% 0.325444% 

$ 1,378,233 $ 1,205,244 S 1,167,399 $ 927,828 $ 835,235 

$ 607,693 $ 523,205 $ 508,788 $ 443,307 $ 530,325 

226.80 % 230.36 % 229.45 % 209.30 % 157.49 % 

63.94 % 62.49 % 62.11 % 66.18% 73.99 % 

18 



Schedule 2b 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability 
Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

Employer's covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

0.069455 % 0.060219 % 0.049137% 0.035852 % 0.028929 % 

$ 587,177 $ 525,737 $ 460,552 $ 280,860 $ 180,981 

$ 204,970 $ 179,772 $ 137,645 $ 95,903 $ 81,307 

286.47 % 292.45 % 334.59 % 292.86 % 222.59 % 

71.89% 70.08 % 66.04 % 70.73 % 75.10% 

19 



Schedule 2c 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability 
Firefighters' Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

Employer's covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

0.060359% 0.059324% 0.077495% 0.078851% 0.076682% 

$ 347,190 $ 340,036 S 506,887 $ 425,569 $ 341,228 

$ 143,703 $ 138,515 $ 174,733 $ 167,572 $ 155,770 

241.60% 245.49 % 290.09 % 253.96% 219.06% 

74.76 % 73.55 % 68.16% 72.45 % 76.02 % 

20 



Schedule 3a 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 
Municipal Employees Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

Contractually required contribution 

Contributions in relation to contractually required contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Employer's covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee pajroll 

153,315 $ 

153,315 

589,676 $ 

26.00 % 

150,404 

150,404 

607,693 

24.75 % 

119,029 $ 

119,029 

523,205 $ 

22.75 % 

100,486 $ 

100,486 

508,788 $ 

19.75 % 

87,553 

87,553 

443,307 

19.75% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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Schedule 3b 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 
Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

Contractually required contribution 

Contributions in relation to contractually required contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Employer's covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee pajroll 

72,866 $ 

72,866 

225,943 $ 

32.25 % 

63,029 

63,029 

204,970 

30.75 % 

57,078 

57,078 

179,772 

31.75% 

40,605 $ 

40,605 

137,645 $ 

29.50% 

30,209 

30,209 

95,903 

31.50% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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Schedule 3c 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 
Firefighters' Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

Contractually required contribution 

Contributions in relation to contractually required contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Employer's covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee pajroll 

40,063 $ 

40,063 

151,178 $ 

26.50 % 

38,082 

38,082 

143,703 

26.50 % 

34,975 $ 

34,975 

138,515 $ 

25.25 % 

47,615 $ 

47,615 

174,733 $ 

27.25 % 

49,015 

49,015 

167,572 

29.25 % 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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Schedule 6 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

James Bradford 

Mayor 

Salary 

Reimbursements 

30,000 

854 

30,854 

Leslie Thonq)son 

avor 

Salary 

Telephone 

Reimbursements 

30,000 

90 

569 

30,660 
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Schedule 5 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation Paid Councilpersons 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

2019 

Devin R. Flowers 

James W. Gtnn 

Nia E. Johnson 

Janet Martin 

Robbie A. Siadek 

Aaron Stringer 

6,000 

3,000 

6,000 

3,000 

6,000 

6,000 

30,000 
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B& BOSCH & 
STATHAM 

Accountants 

EslDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Leslie Thompson, Mayor, 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Jonesboro, State of Louisiana 

We were engaged to audit, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States, and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, issued by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, the financial statements of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund, of the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana (the Town), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic 
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 7, 2021. Oiu report disclaims an opinion on the financial 
statements. The basis for the disclaimer of opinions is twofold. First, since the fiscal year encompasses two administrations, we 
would not expect to receive the current mayor's signature on the management representation letter that is required for us to be able to 
issue urunodified opinions. Secondly, due to the nature of the findings, in our professional judgment, we cannot accept 
management's representation letter. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In connection with our engagement to audit the financial statements, we considered the Town's internal control over financial 
reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of ejqjressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's fmancial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance. 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in intemal control, 
described in the accompanying schedule of fmdings and questioned costs as items 2019-001, 2019-002, 2019-004 through 2019-007, 
2019-010 through 2019-013, and 2019-017, that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

In connection with our engagement to audit the financial statements of the Town, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of fmancial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our engagement to audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in 
the accompanying schedule of fmdings and responses as items 2019-003, 2019-009, 2019-010, 2019-014, 2019-015, and 2019-016. 
Additionally, if the scope of our work had been sufficient to enable us to express opinions on the basic fmancial statements, other 
instances of noncompliance or other matters may have been identified and reported herein. 

Melissa Bosch, CPA (318) 475-1987 • Michael Statham, CPA (318) 355-9943 
609 North Trenton Street Ruston. Louisiana 71270 • Post Office Box 2377. Ruston. Louisiana 71273-2377 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 
Independent Auditor's Report - GAGAS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Town of Jonesboro's Response to Findings 

The Town's response to the findings identified in our engagement is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
responses. The Town's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the engagement to audit the fmancial 
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The piupose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an 
engagement to perform an audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intemal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this commimication is not suitable for any other purpose. Although the intended use of this report may be 
limited, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, it is issued by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

BOSCH & STATHAM. LLC 

Ruston, Louisiana 
May 7,2021 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

1. The auditor's report disclaims an opinion on the Town's financial statements as a whole. 
2. Eleven material weaknesses were disclosed by the audit of the financial statements. 
3. Six instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the Town of Jonesboro were disclosed in 

the audit of the financial statements. 
4. No management letter was issued. 

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

2019-001 Cash Receipt Books Not Properly Maintained 

First reported 
2015 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
In 2015, prenumbered cash receipts were not used in order. During the year ended June 30, 2016, new ticket books 
were purchased and clerks were instructed to use them in order. We were better able to perform a test to account for 
receipt numbers. However, we noted eight receipt niunbers that we could not account for. We selected twenty-five 
receipt numbers and attempted to trace diem to deposits. We were only able to trace nine out of twenty-five receipts 
to deposits posted in the accounting system. We were unable to complete the test because the deposit summary does 
not list individual receipts. The deposit summary lists totals for each type of collection such as fines. 

During the year ended June 30, 2017, we found that the deposit summary had not been revised to provide a proper 
audit trail. We did not select a s^ple from the receipt books. We did select twenty-five tickets from the tickets issued 
by the police department during the ye^. Fifteen of the twenty-five tickets were paid. We were unable to trace four 
of the payments to a summary. 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, we were again unable to trace receipts to deposit documentation because 
personnel do not document which receipts are included in the daily deposits. We noted the daily sheet is attached to 
a report from the utility software showing what amount was collected that day and that amounts for water and sewer 
matched the daily sheet. However, we could not verify that amounts collected for the general fund were accurate. Per 
oiu" understanding ofpolicies and procedures, cashiers complete a daily cash coimt of their drawer. However, we noted 
that those sheets do not match the total daily deposit sheet. We noted for later periods, receipts were being copied and 
attached to daily sheets to support for the balances. Dining our testing, we noticed one receipt was issued out of order, 
and the white copies of receipts were not retained for several voided receipts. 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, we were again unable to trace receipts to deposit documentation. 

Criteria 
Basic intemal control procedures for cash receipts include: 

1. Using a prenumbered receipt book in order. 
2. Notating in the books which receipt numbers were included in which deposit. 
3. Retaining all copies of any voided receipts. 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the condition. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

Effect 
Cash receipts may be misclassified causing a misstatement in the financial statements. The Town is at risk for fi"aud. 

Recommendation 
Our 2015 recommendation read: 

1. Receipt book purchases should be documented. 
2. Receipt books should be numbered when they are received from the vendor. 
3. A logbook should be maintained to record who each book is issued to. 
4. Clerks should use the receipts in order. 
5. All copies of any voided receipts should be retained. 
6. Notation should be made as to the deposit date and deposit amount for each receipt (or series of receipts as long 

as all receipts are included in a deposit). 
7. The Town Clerk should review the books periodically to ensure that implemented procedures are being followed. 

We recommend that management continue to address the identified issues. We specifically recommend that the system 
for summarizing daily receipts be modified to ensure that a cash receipt can be easily traced from die receipt book to 
the deposit. We recommend listing individual receipt numbers and amounts on the daily summary including a total 
for each fund for each revenue account. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2019-002 Utility Fund Accounts Receivable Includes Bad Debts 

First reported 
2015 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
Historically, though amounts reported in financial statements were adjusted down to the estimated collectible amount, 
the subsidiary records were not written down. The total of the subsidiary record at June 30, 2018 was $398,801. The 
fiscal advisor adjusted the amount in die control accounts to $99,665 (sum of garbage $25,656, sewer $23,602 and 
water $50,407). The report we were given from the billing software did not total the aging amounts. 

In 2015, we selected a sample of ten balances out of approximately 300 balances to test for subsequent payment. Out 
of the ten sample items, four had been paid at the time of our fieldwork. We then selected amounts greater than $75 
for testing. We looked at thirteen of the accounts that had balances in excess of $75. Out of those thirteen, two had 
been paid at the time of testing. One of those thirteen was a commercial account with a disputed balance of $62,307. 
No allowance has been recorded. During this testing, we noted that the billing system presented balances as current 
that were not current. Many times, the balances were more than a year old. 

In 2016, we selected a sample of 33 balances out of the balances in the "over 90" column to test for subsequent 
payment. Out of the 33 sanple items, two were credit balances, one was under a payment plan, and one had paid 
$18,600 out of $50,155 at the time of our fieldwork. This account was disputed. The $18,600 was a negotiated 
payment. 

In 2017, we selected a sample of ten bailees from the accounts receivable trial bailee as of June 30,2017. None of 
the balances were paid as of April 11,2018. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

In 2018, we selected a sample of ten balances from the accounts receivable trial balance as of June 30, 2018. As of 
February 5, 2019, eight balances had been written off and two balances were still unpaid. The two unpaid balances 
were current at June 30, 2018 but would have been more than six months old at the time of the audit. 

In 2019, we selected a sample of ten balances from the accounts receivable trial balance as of June 30, 2019. As of 
March 2021, we noted three of the ten customer's balances were not paid in full. One customer's balance has been 
outstanding since 2005, one customer has not paid his balance, however it does appear his service has been turned off. 
One customer paid only part of the balance, but it appears service was not disconnected. 

Criteria 
Proper intemal control requires that procedures be in place to ensure that the subsidiary ledger is accurate, and balances 
presented in the financial statements are properly valued. 

Cause 
We do not understand the cause. 

Effect 
Receivables and revenue may be overstated. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management create a reasonable timeline to work to clean up the subsidiary ledger. It seems that 
adjustment entries could be recorded in each account that has been determined to be uncollectible. Even though the 
accoimt balance would be adjusted to zero and the account made inactive, the account would still contain the history 
of transactions should the Town need to access it. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2019-003 Noncompliance with Public Bid Law 

First reported 
2015 

Type 
Noncompliance 

Condition 
During our fiscal year 2015 test of disbursements, we noted one disbursement out of twenty-five disbursements that 
appeared to have required compliance with the Public Bid Law. The disbiusement was for fuel. We noted no bids 
obtained. The Town spent over $50,000 for fuel during the fiscal year. No bid was obtained for fiscal year 2016 
pmchases either. 

Dining 2017, the Town advertised for fuel bids but not until May 25, 2017 and June 1, 2017. The minutes of the June 
13,2017 meeting indicate no bids were received. The Town's fuel purchases for the year ended June 30,2017 totaled 
$44,449. 

During the audit for fiscal year 2018, the Town advertised for fuel bids. The Town Clerk asserted that no bids were 
received. However, we noted no discussion in the minutes to indicate that the Board was involved in die decision to 
advertise or that it was advised of the lack of bids. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

During the audit for fiscal year 2019, we received no evidence that the Town advertised for bids. According to the 
minutes, the Town accepted a bid for a service truck lease for the fire department. Also, according to the minutes, the 
Mayor entered into a contractual agreement with an oil and gas company. The Town spent a total of $49,056 for gas 
and oil, and $13,506 for diesel. The Bid Law requires bids for expenditures greater than $30,000. 

Criteria 
Louisiana Revised Statute 38;2212 .1 states in part, "A.(l)(a) All purchases of any materials or supplies exceeding the 
sum of thirty thousand dollars to be paid out of public funds shall be advertised and let by contract to the lowest 
responsible bidder who has bid according to the specifications as advertised, and no such purchase shall be made 
except as provided in this Part, (b) However, purchases of ten thousand dollars or more, but less than thirty thousand 
dollars, shall be made by obtaining not less than three telephone or facsimile quotations. A written confirmation of 
the accepted offer shall be obtained and made a part of the purchase file. If quotations lower than the accepted 
quotation are received, the reasons for their rejection shall be recorded in the purchase file." The statute also states in 
part, "C.(l) Whenever a public entity desires to purchase technical equipment, apparatus, machinery, materials, or 
supplies of a certain type and such purchases are clearly in the public interest, the public entity may specify a particular 
brand, make, or manufacturer in the specifications let out for public bid as provided by this Part. If a particular brand, 
make, or manufacturer is specified, the model or catalog number also shall be specified. (2) Wherever in specifications 
the name of a certain brand, make, manufacturer, or definite specification is utilized, the specifications shall state 
clearly that they are used only to denote the quality standard of product desired and that they do not restrict bidders to 
the specific brand, make, manufacturer, or specification named; that they are used only to set forth and convey to 
prospective bidders the general style, type, character, and quality of product desired; and that equivalent products will 
be acceptable." 

Louisiana Revised Statute 42:20, part A states, "All public bodies shall keep written minutes of all of their open 
meetings. The minutes to be kept by the legislature and legislative committees and subcommittees shall be governed 
by the provisions of R.S. 42:21. The minutes of all other public bodies shall include but need not be limited to: (1) 
The date, time, and place of the meeting. (2) The members of the public body recorded as either present or absent. 
(3) The substance of all matters decided, and, at the request of any member, a record, by individual member, of any 
votes taken. (4) Any other information that the public body requests be included or reflected in the minutes." 

Cause 
Bids had not been obtained for fuel in previous years. Management in office during fiscal year 2018 believed that bids 
were not required because the vendor owns the fuel pumps that are on Town property. Management compared prices 
paid for refilling the pumps compared to local filling stations and found the prices paid to be lower. 

The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the other conditions. 

Effect 
It appears that the Town did not comply with state law. The Town may have paid more for fuel. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management ensure that the public bid law is followed when making any purchases. In unusual 
circumstances, legal counsel should be consulted. If considered necessary, an Attorney General opinion should be 
requested. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

2019-004 Failure in Internal Control Over Purchasing 

First reported 
2016 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
We haphazardly selected twenty-five disbursements for testing. We recorded the following exceptions: 

1. We did not receive all the bank statement images so we could not test seven out of twenty-five disbursements 
against the images. 

2. Four out of twenty-five disbursements did not include evidence that two or more people were involved in the 
purchase. 

Additionally, excluding certain types of transactions and certain recurring transactions, we selected disbursements for 
each fund that were greater than a selected threshold based on the fund's expenditure level. We selected a total of 
fourteen disbursements. We recorded the following exceptions: 

1. We noted that the Town Clerk signed four out of ten checks (See above. We were unable to test all images.) 
though the policy prohibits the Clerk from signing. 

2. One out of fourteen checks were not properly supported. 
3. One out of fourteen disbursements were not supported by documentation of the receipt of goods or services. 
4. One out of thirteen disbursements did not include documentation that the purchase was properly authorized. 

Criteria 
Basic internal control procedures include: 1) Requiring a purchase order prior to incurring expenses on behalf of the 
Town and 2) Requiring signatures to document goods or services were received. The Town's purchasing policy 
requires: 1) Purchase orders to be obtained with the Mayor's signature and filed with the invoice and 2) Invoices to 
be signed by a responsible employee. 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the condition. 

Effect 
The Town did not comply with its own policies. Unauthorized purchases could be made. The Town could pay for 
goods or services that it did not receive. 

Recommendation 
We recommend: 

1. That employees be reminded of the policies and their purposes. 
2. That employees be notified that policies will be enforced. 
3. That checks to vendors are not prepared or signed if the docmnentation is not appropriate. 
4. That employees be instructed to appropriately prepare for and respond to audit requests. 

Proper internal control includes the enviromnent, risk assessment, information and communication, and monitoring. 
It is imperative that all employees who are involved in purchasing in any manner believe that management expects 
the policies to be followed. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

ManagemenUs Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2019-005 Overtime Pay 

First reported 
2016 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
The payment of overtime appears to be excessive. 

Dining fiscal year 2016, the Town paid employees for overtime hours a total of $151,838 versus $109,059 in fiscal 
year 2015. The following is a summary by department of those costs; 

Department Hours Amount 
Administration 691.65 $16,998 
Public Works 5,998.93 93,779 
Police 866.33 16,491 
Fire 1.291.00 24.570 
Total 8,847.91 $151,838 

During fiscal year 2017, the Town paid employees for overtime hours a total of $136,764 versus $151,838 in 2016. 
The following is a summary of those costs: 

Department Hours Amount 
Administration 406.67 $9,992 
Public Works 5,547.87 85,737 
Police 806.58 15,309 
Fire 1.348.00 25.725 
Total 8,109.12 $136,763 

During fiscal year 2018, 43 out of approximately 68 employees were paid overtime. Typically, an employee's annual 
hours would be 2,080 calculated as 40 hours per week times 52 weeks; however, 6 employees were paid for greater 
than 2500 hours for the year. For 12 employees, overtime was greater than 20% of their regular salary. For 2 employees 
of the Water/Sewer Department, overtime pay represented 52% ($18k over $35k) and 53% ($16k over $3 Ik) of their 
regular salaries. Overtime pay increased from $113,000 in 2017 to $144,000 in 2018. Of total overtime, $77,000 was 
paid to public works employees. 

During fiscal year 2019, 52 out of approximately 68 employees were paid overtime. Typically, an employee's annual 
hours would be 2,080 calculated as 40 hours per week times 52 weeks; however, 5 employees were paid for greater 
than 2500 hours for the year. For 22 employees, overtime was greater than 20% of their regular salary. For 2 employees 
of the Water/Sewer Department, overtime pay represented 62% ($14k over $22k) and 97% ($13k over $23k) of their 
regular salaries. Overtime pay for 2017, 2018, and 2019 was $113,000, $144,000, and $149,504, respectively. Of total 
overtime, $68,416 was paid to public works employees. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

Criteria 
Overtime pay is generally limited to those instances when it is imperative that work be performed outside of regular 
work hoius. Basic intemal control practices include requiring pre-authorization to work overtime and monitoring of 
overtime costs by a supervisory employee to minimize it where possible. 

Article VII Section 14 of die Louisiana Constitution states in part, "Prohibited Uses. Except as otherwise provided by 
this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be 
loaned, pledged, or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private. Except as otherwise 
provided in this Section, neither the state nor a political subdivision shall subscribe to or purchase the stock of a 
corporation or association or for any private enterprise." 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the exact cause of the condition. Controls are not sufficiently designed to prevent 
the costs. Reasons given to the auditor by management for some of the overtime hours include: water and sewer repair 
emergencies, the need to enter meter readings manually, and the need to work early or late to review time sheets to 
submit them to the payroll clerk on time. We received multiple complaints by multiple soinces alleging that water 
department employees intentionally delay some repairs until the weekend to increase their overtime pay. 

Effect 
The Town may have paid more than necessary to provide services because hours did not need to be paid at overtime 
rates or the work did not need to be performed after hours. Excessive amounts of overtime cost generally mean that 
the staff is too small, there are inefficiencies, and/or there is abuse and/or fraud. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management evaluate payroll costs in relation to work loads and needs. Controls should be revised 
to ensure that overtime is authorized before it is incurred and approved before it is paid. Supervisors should ensure 
that work is properly prioritized to prevent employees from working overtime unless it is necessary. Additionally, we 
recommend that management consider using seasonal and part-time workers. These workers would eam at regular 
rates as opposed to 150% of regular pay rates. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 
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2019-006 Utility Billing Procedures 

First reported 
2016 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
For the fiscal year 2017 audit, procedures we performed included the following: 

• We inquired of the Town Clerk, various employees, vendors, and customers regarding meter reading and 
billing procedures. We were told by multiple sources that the meters are not read and that bills arrive too late 
for customers to pay on time. 

• We selected a sample of four meters to locate and read to compare to the last billed reading. We read three 
out of four meters. Town employees could not locate the fourth meter. None of the three readings were 
consistent with the previous billed readings. One of the four meters was for a commercial lawn watering 
system, yet the billed consumption has not fluctuated since January 2016. Beginning May 1, 2014, the 
customer was billed 110,000 gallons for three months, 117,000 for one month, 108,000 for one month, 
106,000 for two months, 105,000 for two months, 100,000 for five months, 102,000 for four months, 103,000 
for two months, then 102,000 from January 1, 2016 through April 1, 2018 (28 months). 

• We inspected the meter reader's records. He records readings in a notebook. It appeared that readings are 
only documented for cutoffs and similar situations, not for regular readings. There are approximately 2,000 
customers on the system. It seems that it would be physically impossible for one person to read the meters in 
time to submit the readings to the Clerk to be entered for billing. 

• We reviewed selected customer account histories. We noted that the billed consumption was the same for 
many months and sometimes years. 

• The Town Clerk demonstrated how she fills out a screen in the billing software to enter a reading for every 
customer in the system. This task was given as a significant reason given for the Clerk's need for overtime. 
However, sources tell us that the outsourced billing service can bill the previous reading by instruction alone. 
Entering the amounts for every customer does not appear to be necessary. 

• We noted through interviews with various customers and others that bills were often mailed to customers 
after the standard billing date. Management blamed the outsourced billing service. It appears that the fault 
lies with the Town not notifying the outsourced billing service to proceed with billing in a timely manner. 
This seems especially odd since none of the meters are being read. We were initially told that meters were 
being read manually. Later we were told that the meters were being read on a rotation basis whereby all 
meters were read every couple of months. The Town Clerk ultimately admitted that the meters were not being 
read and that the Mayor was aware that they were not being read. 

For the fiscal year 2018 audit, the results were much the same. We again received allegations that meters are not read, 
customers are billed the same amount month after month, and bills are mailed too late for timely payments. Our 
inspection of account histories and the results of other procedures are consistent with these allegations. 

We did not identify any significant improvements for the fiscal year 2019 audit. 
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Criteria 
Policies and procedures for utility billing should ensure that customers are billed for the services they use at authorized 
rates. 

Article VII Section 14 of die Louisiana Constitution states in part, "Prohibited Uses. Except as otherwise provided by 
this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be 
loaned, pledged, or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private. Except as otherwise 
provided in this Section, neither the state nor a political subdivision shall subscribe to or purchase the stock of a 
corporation or association or for any private enterprise." 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the condition. The Town has invested in a system that would read 
the meters electronically in a short amount of time. While the Town was under Fiscal Administration, the Fiscal 
Administrator was systematically updating meters that were not working with the automated reader. Had the process 
been continued, it seems most if not all of the meters could now be read electronically. It appears that this process 
would have taken an hour or two at most. 

Effect 
The Town cannot be billing for actual usage. This could result in under or overbilling customers and over or 
understating the Town's revenue. The billing process may be taking longer than necessary which may be costing the 
town in payroll expenses. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management form a committee, perhaps including one or more Board members, to evaluate the 
process and determine whether meters are being read properly and customers and being billed properly. We 
recommend that none of the persons that are currently involved in the system be solely responsible for the project. We 
recommend that a plan be devised to update the remaining meters to be read by the electronic reading system. We 
recommend that the entire project be completed within a year. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2019-007 Timekeeping Procedures 

First reported 
2016 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
During the audit of the 2016 fiscal year, we noted the following issues that also occurred in the test period referred to 
above: 

1. No form or incomplete overtime form supporting overtime paid 
2. No lunch breaks recorded 
3. Clocking in and out and the exact same time everyday 
4. Manual entries on time/attendance records of employees who use a clock 
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During the audit of the 2017 fiscal year, we selected for testing twenty-five employees from the pay period of Janu^ 
19,2017 through January 25,2017. We noted the following: 

1. The supervisor's approval was not documented for two out of twenty-five time/attendance records. 
2. Three out of twenty-five paychecks included the use of accrued leave. One of three time/attendance records 

did not include evidence of a supervisor's approval of leave used. 

During the audit of the 2018 fiscal year, we selected for testing the period from June 14,2019 to June 20, 2019, a pay 
period in the last month of the fiscal year. The time period was selected for the purpose of determining the most current 
state of the payroll processing system. We selected twenty-five employees for testing ensuring that at least one 
employee was selected from each department. The following is a summary of results: 

1. One employee left in November 2017. Attendance was documented for the remaining 24 employees tested. 
2. For 13 out of 24 employees tested, the supervisor's signature was not present on the attendance record. 
3. During die test period, 7 out of 24 employees were paid overtime. The supervisor's signature was not present 

to approve the overtime for 4 out of 7 employees. 

During the audit of the 2019 fiscal ye^, we selected one check for each of nine employees for testing. The following 
is a summary of results: 

1. One employee did not receive a check during the selected period. One of the selected persons was an elected 
official. Attendance was not documented for 2 out of 7 remaining. 

2. For 5 out of 7 employees tested, the supervisor's signature was not present on the attendance record. 
3. During the test period, 6 out of 8 employees were paid overtime. The supervisor's signature was not present 

to approve the overtime for 5 out of 6 employees. 
4. We did not receive leave records for 2 out of 7 employees. 

Criteria 
Basic practices include procedures to ensure that time/attendance records supporting paychecks are accurate, 
reviewed, and approved. Town policies should be enforced to include completely and acciuately prep^ing required 
forms. All state and federal laws and regulations related to payroll should be adhered to. Manually entering time for 
employees using a time clock should be infrequent. 

Article VII Section 14 of die Louisiana Constitution states in part, "Prohibited Uses. Except as otherwise provided by 
this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be 
loaned, pledged, or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private. Except as otherwise 
provided in this Section, neither the state nor a political subdivision shall subscribe to or purchase the stock of a 
corporation or association or for ^y private enterprise." 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the exact cause for all aspects of the condition. It appears that the various 
supervisors are not consistent in enforcing policies or reviewing time reports. This lack of concem for policy may 
have come from an inappropriate control environment more commonly known as the tone at the top. 

Effect 
Employees could be over or underpaid due to error, abuse or fraud. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management ensure that supervisors and employees are properly trained and reminded of policies 
and procedures. Employees and supervisors should be told that payroll will not be processed without proper 
documentation. 
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ManagemenUs Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2019-008 Noncompliance with Budget Act 

First reported 
2016 

Type 
Noncompliance 

Condition 
We noted the following exceptions: 

1. We did not receive the budget message or any proofs of advertisement that are required by the Budget Act. 
2. We were given amended budgets but could not confirm in the minutes that they were adopted. 
3. Per the Budgetary Comparison schedule: 

a. The General Fund budgeted expenditures were 7 percent above budget. The budget document 
included a mathematical error causing the operating deficit to be presented as $159,930 instead of 
$1,690. 

b. The Fire Ad Valorem Special Revenue Fund budget included a deficit of $23,808. Only the deficit 
was budgeted though there were actual transfers to the General Fund totaling $63,860. 

c. The Street Ad Valorem Special Revenue Fund budget included a deficit of $47,214. Only the deficit 
was budgeted though there were actual transfers to the General Fund totaling $24,050. 

d. The Street Sales Tax Revenue Fund budget included only flmd balance though there were actual 
tr^sfers to the General Fund totaling $934,503. 

Criteria 
Section 406 of the Lawrason Act, states in part, "A. (3) Any act of the Board of Aldermen which would provide for 
the appropriation of flmds, die incurrence of debt, or the issuance of bonds or other evidences of indebtedness shall 
be by ordinance." 

Section 1313 of the Budget Act also states in part, "The chief executive or administrative officer shall retain and file 
certified copies of the adopted budget, budget adoption instrument, duly authorized budget amendments, and copies 
of supporting schedules and correspondence related to the budget at the domicile of the governing authority." 

Louisiana Revised Statute 42:20, part A states, "All public bodies shall keep written minutes of all of their open 
meetings. The minutes to be kept by the legislature and legislative committees and subcommittees shall be governed 
by the provisions of R.S. 42:21. The minutes of all other public bodies shall include but need not be limited to: (1) 
The date, time, and place of the meeting. (2) The members of the public body recorded as either present or absent. 
(3) The substance of all matters decided, and, at the request of any member, a record, by individual member, of any 
votes taken. (4) Any other information that the public body requests be included or reflected in the minutes." 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the condition. 

Effect 
The Town's budget file does not clearly demonstrate the Town's compliance with the Budget Act. Controls did not 
operate effectively to prevent noncompliance. 
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Recommendation 
We recommend that management consult with the Town Attorney to revise procedures to ensure that the Town 
complies with laws affecting die budget process. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2019-009 Failure to Publish Minutes 

First reported 
2016 

Type 
Noncompliance 

Condition 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the Town did not publish Board of Aldermen minutes in the official joumal 
for a period of several months. The June 2015 minutes were published July 23, 2015. We noted no other minutes 
published from July 23, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 

The minutes for meetings held between July 19, 2016 and September 12, 2017 were published November 16, 2017. 
We did not receive evidence that minutes for later meetings for the audit ye^ had been published as of February 2019, 
the time of fieldwork. 

During the audit of fiscal year 2019, we noted that the minutes for two out of nineteen meetings were not published 
or had no evidence of publication. We noted minutes for ten out of nineteen meetings were published more th^i twenty 
days after the meeting date. 

Criteria 
Louisiana Revised Statute 42:20 states, "Written minutes A. All public bodies shall keep written minutes of all of 
their open meetings. The minutes to be kept by the legislature and legislative committees and subcommittees shall be 
governed by the provisions ofR.S. 42:21. The minutes of all other public bodies shall include but need not be limited 
to: (1) The date, time, and place of the meeting. (2) The members of the public body recorded as either present or 
absent. (3) The substance of all matters decided, and, at the request of any member, a record, by individual member, 
of any votes taken. (4) Any other information diat the public body requests be included or reflected in the minutes. 
B.(l) The minutes shall be public records and shall be available within a reasonable time after the meeting, except 
where such disclosures would be inconsistent with R.S. 42:16, 17, and 18, or rules adopted under the provisions of 
R.S. 42:21. (2) If the public body has a website, the public body shall post on its website a copy of the minutes made 
available pursuant to Paragraph (1) of this Subsection and shall maintain the copy of those minutes on the website for 
at least three months after the posting. If the public body is required to publish its minutes in an official joumal, the 
public body shall post its minutes on its website as required by this Paragraph within ten days after publication in the 
official joumal. If the public body is not required to publish its minutes in an official joumal, the public body shall 
post its minutes on its website as required by this Paragraph within a reasonable time after the meeting. The inability 
of the public to access the public body's website due to any type of technological failure shall not be a violation of the 
provisions of this Chapter." 
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Louisiana Revised State 43:144 states, "Penalty for failure to have proceedings published. The official of any 
municipal corporation, police jury, or school coimcil by law responsible for the preparing and recording of the official 
proceedings who, within twenty days from the date of any meeting at which the official proceedings were had, wilfully 
neglects or fails to fumish the official joumal with a copy of the minutes, ordinances, resolutions, budgets, and 
proceedings for publication, shall be fined not less than twenty-five dollars nor more than five hundred dollars, or be 
imprisoned for not less than ten days nor more than six months, or both." 

Cause 
See finding 2018-015. 

Effect 
The Town did not comply with state law concerning minutes. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management review policies and procedures to ensure that policies and procedures are adequately 
designed and monitored to prevent noncompliance. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2019-010 Financial Statements Issued After Due Date 

First reported 
2016 

Type 
Material Weakness, Noncompliance 

Condition 
The audit report was submitted after the statutory due date. 

Criteria 
State law requires the Town to submit to the Louisiana Legislative Auditor audited financial statements within six 
months of year end or December 31, 2019, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 

Cause 
See other findings. The audit report was delayed by the following: 

• Accounting records were not properly maintained. 
• Once the outside accountant could begin his work, he foimd incomplete bookkeeping and errors. 
• The above delays caused scheduling conflicts for the ontside accountant and auditor. Both firms were booked 

for other engagements. The firms had to work on the town's books and audit as their schedules permitted. In 
an attempt to make progress, as our schedule permitted, we began completing procedures before the books 
were adjusted to their final state and before the financial statements were available. Only a limited amount 
of work can be completed before the books are available. The financial statements did not become available 
to the auditor until November 2020. 

• Information obtained from procedures performed indicated a higher risk of material misstatement and 
noncompliance with laws, regulations, and contracts than initially assessed. Additional procedures had to be 
performed. 
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Effect 
When an entity is late filing its report, the entity is placed on the LLA's noncompliance list. Being placed on the list 
results in an entity receiving no funds from the State imtil the entity is removed from the list. Management cannot 
work in a timely manner to resolve internal control defrciencies and noncompliance with laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grants identifred by the auditor. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the following: 

1. Implement recommendations in other frndings. 
2. Clearly communicate proper lines of authority and responsibility to all employees. 
3. Ensure that the internal control system design includes proper monitoring, supervision, and review and ensure 

that such monitoring, supervision, and review is taking place. 
4. Ensure that management is present and actively monitoring operations and supervising employees. 
5. Engage die outside CPA to monitor accounting monthly to ensure that proper accounting and control 

procedures are followed. 
6. Ensure that the outside CPA is allowed access to complete year-end adjustments and submit data to the 

auditor by August 3 U* each year. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2019-011 Financial Statements Not Provided to Board of Aldermen 

First reported 
2017 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
Monthly financial statements were not submitted to the Board of Aldermen during the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Criteria 
Proper internal controls and LLA Best Practices include review of fmancial statements by management and the 
governing board. 

Cause 
See other findings. 

Effect 
Management and the Board of Aldermen have not been able to fulfill their responsibility to oversee the Town's 
finances. 
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Recommendation 
We recommend that the Town utilize the outside accountant to ensure that financial statements are provided to 
management and the Board of Aldermen. We recommend fliat the accountmit be allowed to perform the following 
procedures on a monthly basis; 

• Confirm that all deposits have been made and recorded 
• Confirm that bank reconciliations have been performed for all bank accounts 
• Agree other asset and liability accounts to supporting documentation 
• Review the general ledger for accounting errors and make adjustments as needed 
• Read financial statements produced from the accounting system and make any changes needed 

ManagemenUs Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2019-012 Failure in Multiple Elements of Internal Control 

First reported 
2017 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
The audit of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 took place diuing the two fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and June 
30, 2020. The performance of our audit procedures and statewide agreed-upon procedures included the following: 

• Observance of management and employees 
• Interviews of elected officials, management, employees, citizens, vendors, and contractors 
• Analytical Reviews 
• Tests of transactions 

From these procedures, we identified deficiencies and/or weaknesses in all of the components of internal control: 

• Control environment 
• Risk Assessment 
• Information and communication 
• Monitoring 
• Control activities 

Evidence obtained from the above procedures indicated the following specific issues: 

• Overall lack of communication ^d, sometimes, animosity between officials, between departments, and 
between employees 

• The former Mayor and Town Clerk were often absent from Town Hall. The current Mayor took office January 
1,2019. 

• The former Town Clerk was often behind closed doors when she was present at Town Hall. 
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Criteria 
Local governments typically use the Green Book as a model for intemal control. Per 
https://www.gao.gov/greenbook/overview. "Intemal control helps an entity run its operations efficiently and 
effectively, report reliable information about its operations, and comply with applicable laws and regulations. 
Standards for Internal Control in the Federal Government, known as the "Green Book," sets the standards for an 
effective intemal control system for federal agencies." 

The Town is subject to the Lawrason Act found in LRS 33:321-463. The Act stipulates that the Council or Board of 
Aldermen has legislative powers and the Mayor is the Chief Executive Officer. The Clerk's duties, per the Act, include 
keeping the minute book, maintaining custody of the town seal, maintaining the court docket, and maintaining and 
preserving other books and records. 

Cause 
See other findings. 

Effect 
We identified the following effects from the above-described condition: 

• The absence of management creates an environment ripe for abuse and fraud. For example, multiple sources 
(officials, employees, citizens, and vendors) reported that employees were often parked/idol in town vehicles 
for extended periods of time during work hours. We received multiple complaints that the phone at the public 
works department often goes unanswered. We received multiple complaints that employees use town 
equipment for personal uses. Also see the other findings, including, but not limited to, excessive overtime. 

• Poor communication limits the ability of employees to perform their assigned duties. It is necessary to 
communicate information and transfer data and documents among departments to ensure that transactions 
were properly initiated, authorized, documented, and recorded. For example, we noted that the bookkeeper 
responsible for processing payroll and accounts payable and posting deposits has difficulty getting properly 
completed time/attendance and leave records, purchase orders, invoices, and deposit information from other 
employees. Also, the police chief moved the collection of fines from town hall to the police department due 
to failures reported in the fiscal year 2016 audit report. 

• The fiscal advisor (accountant) was unable to fully adjust balances due to time constraints and lack of data. 
Unidentified differences are posted to miscellaneous income or expenditure/expense accounts. 

• Bank reconciliations were not timely. 
• Many transactions were not posted during the year until the outside accountant worked to adjust the books 

for audit. 
• Many bank statements were not provided to us or not provided in a timely manner. Though we requested 

data in advance. 
• We were unable to explain material variances from expectations in revenue and expenditures/expenses. 
• All or a majority of the other fmdings were caused by this condition or are related to this condition. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that an intentional effort be made to ensure that the Town's intemal control system is properly 
designed, implemented, and monitored. We previously recommended that the Town utilize its outside accountant or 
CPA firm to monitor the accoimting and reporting function. The firm could also assist in evaluating and adjusting the 
intemal control system and perhaps testing the system to ensure that it is functioning as designed. 

ManagemenUs Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 
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2019-013 Lack of Segregation of Duties in Collections 

First reported 
2017 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
During the years ended June 30, 2017, 2018, and 2019, some employees performed incompatible duties. The Town 
Clerk received collections from the cashiers, prepared the deposits, took the deposit to the bank, and prepared the daily 
summary of collections at town hall. The tax collector prepared tax bills, collected tax payments, posted tax payments 
in the tax software, and managed the tax sale. Additionally, during fiscal year 2017-2018, due to a fiscal year 2016 
audit fmding, the police chief moved collections of fmes from town hall to the police department. A better segregation 
of duties is achieved when collections are at town hall since the police department writes citations and accounts for 
citation numbers. 
We did not identify any control activities that mitigated the risk increase caused by the lack of proper segregation of 
duties. 

Criteria 
Paragraph 10.13 of the Green Book reads in part (emphasis added), "Segregation of duties helps prevent fraud, waste, 
and abuse in the internal control system. If segregation of duties is not practical within an operational process because 
of limited personnel or other factors, management designs alternative control activities to address the risk of fraud, 
waste, or abuse in the operational process. Management considers the need to separate control activities related to 
authority, custody, and accounting of operations to achieve adequate segregation of duties. In particular, 
segregation of duties can address the risk of management override. Management override circumvents existing control 
activities and increases fraud risk." 

Cause 
The Town Clerk assumed her duties due to lack of available personnel to assign selected duties to. The tax collector 
collected tax payments because she believed it helped her ensure an accurate accounting. The police department 
collected payments of fmes due to the police chief s concern about collections issues highlighted in the fiscal ye^ 
2016 audit. 

Effect 
Improper segregation of duties without compensating controls gives one individual too much power md thus increases 
the risk for fraud, waste, and abuse. 

Recommendation 
Our 2017 recommendation read as follows: 

Our recommendation in the fmding regarding failure to produce financial statements could also address the lack 
of segregation of duties. The outside accountant's role could include monitoring of these activities. However, we 
recommend that cashiers at town hall be responsible for all collections. 

Currently, the outside accountant has taken over some of the duties such as posting deposits, paying vendors, and 
processing payroll. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 
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2019-014 Utility Accounts of Employees and Officials Paid Late 

First reported 
2017 

Type 
Material Weakness, Noncompliance 

Condition 
Several (not all) officials and key employees were charged one or more penalties during the year, indicating their 
payments were received past the due date. It appears that penalties were sometimes not charged to employees and 
officials even if their payments were late. However, all accounts were current as of April 6, 2021, the date the account 
histories were produced for the audit. 

Criteria 
Article VII Section 14 of die Louisiana Constitution states in part, "Prohibited Uses. Except as otherwise provided by 
this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be 
loaned, pledged, or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private. Except as otherwise 
provided in this Section, neither the state nor a political subdivision shall subscribe to or purchase the stock of a 
corporation or association or for any private enterprise." 

Cause 
We did not identify the cause of the condition. 

Effect 
In failing to collect balmces owed by employees to the Town, the Town loaned funds to the employees in violation 
of the Constitution. Additionally, failing to collect fi"om any individual or company who owes the Town is reducing 
the Town's ability to provide services. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that the Town ensure that its written policy for terminating services and collecting payments is 
appropriately designed and implemented. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2019-015 Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire Not Properly Executed 

First reported 
2018 

Type 
Noncompliance 

Condition 
We did not receive ^ execnted Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire. 
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Criteria 
Louisiana Audit Law gives the Louisiana Legislative Auditor the authority to impose certain requirements on local 
governments. Via the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, the Town is required to submit to the auditor at the 
begiiming of the audit a completed and signed Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire accompanied by a resolution of 
the Board. 

Cause 
See other findings. 

Effect 
The Town did not comply with the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that the Town Clerk review the requirements and ensure that future questionnaires are properly 
executed. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2019-016 Board Meeting Minutes Were Not Properly Prepared or Retained 

First reported 
2018 

Type 
Noncompliance 

Condition 
No minutes were available for the meeting that appeared to be held on August 27, 2018. Minutes were sometimes too 
vague. At times the minutes were not clear as to who was speaking or taking action. 

Criteria 
Louisiana Revised Statute 42;20 states, "Written minutes A. All public bodies shall keep written minutes of all of 
their open meetings. The minutes to be kept by the legislature and legislative committees and subcommittees shall be 
governed by the provisions of R.S. 42;21. The minutes of all other public bodies shall include but need not be limited 
to: (1) The date, time, and place of the meeting. (2) The members of the public body recorded as either present or 
absent. (3) The substance of all matters decided, and, at the request of any member, a record, by individual member, 
of any votes taken. (4) Any other information diat the public body requests be included or reflected in the minutes. 
B.(l) The minutes shall be public records and shall be available within a reasonable time after the meeting, except 
where such disclosures would be inconsistent with R.S. 42:16, 17, and 18, or rules adopted under the provisions of 
R.S. 42:21. (2) If the public body has a website, the public body shall post on its website a copy of the minutes made 
available pursuant to Paragraph (1) of this Subsection and shall maintain the copy of those minutes on the website for 
at least three months after the posting. If the public body is required to publish its minutes in an official journal, the 
public body shall post its minutes on its website as required by this Paragraph within ten days after publication in the 
official joinnal. If the public body is not required to publish its minutes in an official journal, the public body shall 
post its minutes on its website as required by this Paragraph within a reasonable time after the meeting. The inability 
of the public to access the public body's website due to any type of technological failure shall not be a violation of the 
provisions of this Chapter." 

Cause 
See other findings. 
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Effect 
The Town did not fully comply with the stated requirements. The minutes do not contain a complete accmate audit 
trail. Minutes are a significant source of audit evidence. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management review policies and procedures to ensure that policies and procedures are adequately 
designed and monitored to prevent noncompliance. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2019-017 Failure to Properly Prepare Bank Reconciliations and Failure to Submit to the Auditor, Records 
Including Bank Statements and Bank Reconciliations 

First reported 
2018 

Type 
Material Weakness, Noncompliance 

Condition 
Bank reconciliations were not prepared in a timely manner. In some cases, reconciliations were prepared ten months 
after year end. We did not receive all bank statements. 

Criteria 
The Louisiana Audit Law states in part {emphasis added); 

"LRS 24§513. Powers and duties of legislative auditor; audit reports as public records; assistance and opinions of 
attorney general; frequency of audits; subpoena power 

A.(l)(a) Subject to Paragraph (3) of this Subsection, the legislative auditor shall have authority to compile financial 
statements and to examine, audit, or review the books and accounts of die state treasurer, all public boards, 
commissions, agencies, departments, political subdivisions of the state, public officials and employees, public 
retirement systems enumerated in R.S. 11:173(A), municipalities, and all other public or quasi public agencies or 
bodies, hereinafter collectively referred to as the "auditee". The scope of the examinations mav include financial 
accoimtability, legal compliance and evaluations of the economy, efficiency, and effectiveness of the auditee's 
programs or any combination of the foregoing. In addition to the authority granted above, the legislative auditor shall 
have access to and be permitted to examine all papers, books, accoimts. records, files, instruments, documents, films, 
tapes, and anv other forms of recordation of all auditees. including but not limited to computers and recording devices, 
and all software and hardware which hold data, is part of the technical processes leading up to the retention of data, 
or is part of the security system. This access shall not be prohibited by Paragraph (3) of this Subsection. 

E. In the performance of his duties as herein stated, the legislative auditor, or any member of his staff designated by 
him, shall have the power to inspect and to make copies of any books, records, instruments, documents, files, films, 
tapes, and other forms of recordation, including but not limited to computer and recording devices, of the auditee. He 
may call upon the auditee and any of its officials and staff for assistance and advice, and such assistance shall be given 
through the assignment of personnel or in such other manner as necessity requires. 
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H.(l) All auditees and their officials and staff are hereby directed to assist the legislative auditor in his work and to 
furnish such information, reports, aid, services, and assistance as mav be requested, all without any cost or charge. It 
shall be the duty of the attorney general and the local district attorney to give assistance to the legislative auditor. The 
attorney general shall render his opinion in writing on any subject requested by the legislative auditor. 
(2)(a) Each auditee shall designate an individual who shall be responsible for filing annual financial reports with the 
legislative auditor and shall notify the legislative auditor of the name and address of the person so designated, 
(b) A governmental entity that provides funding to a quasi public agency or body shall notify each such quasi public 
agency or body of the requirements of this Paragraph. 

I. The authoritv granted to the legislative auditor in this Section to examine, audit, inspect or copv shall extend to all 
books, accounts, papers, documents, records, files, instruments, films, tapes, and anv other forms of recordation, 
including but not limited to computers and recording devices, whether confidential or otherwise. However, the 
legislative auditor shall comply with any and all restrictions imposed by law on documents, data, or information 
deemed confidential by law and furnished to the legislative auditor. 

Cause 
See other findings. 

Effect 
The Town appears to have violated the Louisiana Audit Law. The Law includes the following: 

"K. Whoever violates the provisions of this Section shall be fmed not more than one thousand dollars and shall be 
deemed guilty of malfeasmice and gross misconduct in office, and shall be subject to removal." 

The Town has been placed on the noncompliance list and will receive no funds from the State until the report is 
submitted. 

Recommendation 
See 2018-013 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

2018-001 Cash Receipt Books Not Properly Maintained 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-001. 

2018-002 Liability for Customer Deposits Exceeds Restricted Cash 

Status 
Resolved 

2018-003 Utility Fund Accounts Receivable Includes Bad Debts 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-002. 

2018-004 Noncompliance with Public Bid Law 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-003. 

2018-005 Failure in Internal Control Over Purchasing 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-004. 

2018-006 Customer Refunds Not Reflected in the Billing System 

Status 
Resolved 

2018-007 Overtime Pay 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-005. 

2018-008 Utility Billing Procedures 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-006. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

2018-009 Timekeeping Procedures 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-007. 

2018-010 Noncompliance with Budget Act 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-008. 

2018-011 Failure to Publish Minutes 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-009. 

2018-012 Late Filing of Police Supplemental Pay Reports 

Status 
Resolved 

2018-013 Financial Statements Issued After Due Date 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-010. 

2018-014 Financial Statements Not Provided to Board of Aldermen 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-011. 

2018-015 Failure in Multiple Elements of Internal Control 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-012. 

2018-016 Lack of Segregation of Duties in Collections 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-013. 

2018-017 Utility Accounts of Employees and Officials Paid Late 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-014. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019 

2018-018 Employee Paid as Contract Labor 

Status 
Resolved 

2018-019 Certificate of Deposit Cashed Without Board of Aldermen Approval 

Status 
Resolved 

2018-020 Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire Not Properly Executed 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-015. 

2018-021 Board Meeting Minutes Were Not Properly Prepared or Retained 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-016. 

2018-022 Failure to Properly Prepare Bank Reconciliations and Failure to Submit to the Auditor, Records 
Including Bank Statements and Bank Reconciliations 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2019-017 

2018-023 Failure to Provide Grant Files to the Auditor 

Status 
Resolved 
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BOSCH & 
STATHAM 

c Accountants 

Independent Accountant's Report 
on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

To the Town of Jonesboro 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

We have performed the procedmes enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Town of Jonesboro (Entity) and 
the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the LLA's Statewide 
Agreed-Upon Procedures (SALfPs) for the fiscal period July 1,2018 through June 30,2019. The Entity's management 
is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accoimtants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. The 
sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of this report. Consequently, we 
make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which 
this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

We completed the agreed-upon procedures but did not accept a representation letter from ciurent management. We 
were also engaged to conduct an audit of the Entity's financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
The first half of the fiscal period was under the former administration. The second half of the fiscal period was imder 
the current administration. Also, due to the nature of the findings in the audit schedule of fmdings and responses, we 
could not, in our professional opinion, accept current management's representation for the agreed-upon procedures. 

The procedures and associated fmdings are as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain the entity's written policies and procedures and observe that they address each of the following categories 
and subcategories (if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations): 

M)e/ohVciOv\ed/ 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

The/pcHicy C4^£lude^ciU/the^Ke<;fuir&mev\Xi'. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how pmchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor list; (3) the 
preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure 
compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price 
quotes. 

The^Towrvypoilcy dCd/notCviclude/el&me4^Xy(l), (2), (^), or (5). 

E)ccepCCoYiy. See/dbove/. 

Se£/Mc^4^/;ig^*nev\t'yCorre<X0ue'Acttoy\/plar\/ 

52 

Melissa Bosch, CPA (318) 475-1987 • Michael Statham, CPA (318) 355-9943 
609 North Trenton Street, Ruston, Louisiana 71270 • Post Office Box 2377, Ruston, Louisiana 71273-2377 



Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 
Report on Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
June 30, 2019 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

Th^Towi^ypoU^ dX^notC4\clu4ie/pK<yce^^Cng^ofdO&lyiA^ieme4^Xi: 

EiccepUony: See^ahxyve/. 

McLviag€me4^t'y'Re^<yyi&e< Se^Ma4\cige^nei^t'yC<yrKe<X(\f&'ActCori'Pla/n/ 

d) Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and procedures should 
include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or 
agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after 
cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies 
confirmation). 

The^Towi^/ypoiCcy dCd/notadd^e^pr^OyTiXtuyyx/ofdepOiitytM^A'COri^let&ne^. 

E}cceptCoYi&^ See^ahove< 

5ee'Mtm<^^€ment'yC(>rrect£ve'74ctum/pla^ 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and attendance 
records, including leave and overtime worked. 

Tl^£/poiCcy doeyn(yCcoi^Xi;u4^/th^r^tMred/eleme4^ty. 

E)cceptCony See^dbove^. 

Mcma^emenC'i'fleipcm^ Se^MctA\a^e4ne4^XfyCorKe<Xt\fe/ActCon/Pla*\/ 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and conditions, 
(3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process 

T%e/TowdypoU^ d(yeynotaddr&iyel&m&r\Xy(2) or (5). 

^}cceptXon&^ See^dbxyve/. 

McLviag€me4^Xfy'Re^<yyi&e< 56©'Mana^€4nent'yC(>KrecC£v&'?4ctum/plcMv 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to be 
controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers of 
statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card piuchases) 

Th^TxywdypxylU:y (iCd/niytL4^xdude^el&me4^t(^). 

E}cceptC<yny Se€/dbxyve< 

Mcma^ement'yRedpcm^" 56e'Mtm<^^€4nent'yCc>rrect£ve'f4ctum/pla^ 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by category of 
expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

The/policy L^\xdiide^dWtb£/re^iAAA'e>me^\X::y. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42; 111 1-1121, (2) actions to 
be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) 
requirement that all employees, including elected officials, annually attest through signature verification that 
they have read the entity's ethics policy. Note: Ethics requirements are not applicable to nonprofits. 

The/pdiicy doey not conCulnXhe/ recfiured/ el&menCy. 

E}cceptX<yn&^ See/dbxyve/. 

5ee'Mimagement'yCc>rrect£ve'74ctum/pla4V 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 
Report on Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
June 30, 2019 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting requirements, 
(3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Th^Towi^doe^nothxVife/iX'VehtSe^Coe/pollcy. 

E}ccepUoYi&< See^ahxyve/. 

McLviag€me4^t'y'Re^<yyi&e< yC<yrKe<XO^&'ActCori'Pla/n/ 

k) Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identification of critical data and frequency of data 
backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic 
testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely 
application of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, 
processes, and tolls needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

T\^T<ywvvdoe^Y\jffVhx^e/a^ViiCL^e^1le<:overyf3u^&lvie>^COY\XtviuiZy policy. 

E}cceptCony Se€/cibove< 

5ee'Mtm<^^€4nent'yCc>rrect£ve'74ctum/plaiv 

Board (or Finance Committee, if applicable) 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's enabling 
legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

We^ohti;u4^ied/a4^A/L4\&pect^4i'lKe^hocu'd/y th^fticcil'p&rCod/. 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum a least monthly, or on a frequency in accordance 
with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

We^oh^erved/th^Xh^hocu'd/metaX:lea^yyioy\XKly. 

F}cceptCoyi&< hJone^. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or 
included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund and major special revenue funds, as well 
as monthly financial statements (or budget-to-actual comparisons, if budgeted) for major proprietary funds. 
Alternately, for those entities reporting on the non-profit accounting model, observe that the minutes 
referenced or included financial activity relating to public funds if those public funds comprised more than 
10% of the entity's collections during the fiscal period. 

Mle/ did/ not dh^e^e/ CLv\y refcrey^jc/o/to- monXhXy htAd.gct-tir-cictUal/ corytpcwOion&' 

on/any fundU'. 

EiccepCCony Se^cdyove/. 

Mayiag-ement'y'Re^on&e/: Se^Mana^^ntenXfyCorrecttAfe/Actlon/plan/ 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund balance in the 
general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund balance in the prior year audit report, 
observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan 
to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

We/ohtcUned/th^prCor'year audit report and/ohieyved/O'pOilCiA/e/unaiiCgned/ 
{u4^hcdxvnx>e/Ln/th^g€4\eycd/{und/. 

hJone/. 
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June 30, 2019 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating account. Select the entity's 
main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select 
one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for 
selected each account, and observe that: 

We^ohtuCne^th^ll&tti\g^a^KeciLAX^ed/CLVid/ielecCed/1he^m(yriXh/ofM(M'ch/2019 for 

E)ccepttony hiane/ 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related statement 
closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged). 

None^of1he^iele<X:(sd/re<x»\cilCcitXoy\^were'prepcu'e^wCthin/twO'moy\X^ofthe' 
relccCed/ jteUr&menf dccCe< 

E)cceptCony See^ahove/. 

Ma-no^ement'i'T^eipcm^" Se^Ma4\a,ge*nev\XfyCorre<XL\f&'ActCov\/plcL*\/ 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not handle 
cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, 
electronically logged); and 

None' of the' reconeiXicUton^ selected/ Cncluded/ evuience' of 
ma^ncigemei^X/bocLrd/ member y review. 

ExeeptXony See'dbove'. 

Maynagement'y'Re'&fyon&ec See'Ma^na^ementfyCorrecttAfe/ActCon'PlcLn/ 

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been outstanding 
for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

The' reconeClCaXtony showed/ no- evidence/ of re&earch/ into- s^xCue' itemjy 
otAtsCcLndCng/for more/than/lZ monthy. 

Escceptionv. None/ 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) are 
prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all 
deposit sites if less than 5). 

We' obtutned/ a/ liiting/ of deposit hitey for the/ fUccd/ period/. There/ wa^y ovdy 1 
deposit Ute/on/the/lCyC. 

E}cceptiony None/ 
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Collections 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e., 5 collection locations for 
5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written 
policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that 
job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

for the/ depOiCC itC©' IC^ed/, we/ ohtuCned/ a/ of coUe<XCon/ loccUtoni'. There/ 
we^ 2 locccttony We- C4\cfLUred/ of evyVfloyeey COOOXAJC iKeir Job- ddAXte^ txr 
determCvie/how ctre/ieg'reg<xX:ed/. 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

We/ noted/ no- eniployeey ihcwe^ ccLiih/ drawery 

f)cceptCony hJone' 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank deposits, unless 
another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation (e.g., pre-numbered 
receipts) to the deposit. 

fynployeey re^on&thle^ for coViccttn^ ca^h/ do- not prepare/ or make/ hank/ 
depoiCCy 

Eiccepttony hJone' 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for [posting collection entries to the general 
ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling ledger postings 
to each other and to the deposit. 

EvyVployeeyre^on&{hl€/forajUe<X(4^caih/do'notpoitcotLectCon/ertrCeytO-X!he/ 
genercd/ledger. 

E)cceptCony: hione/ 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary ledgers, 
by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, unless another 
employee verifies the reconciliation. 

We/ noted/ no- employee/ Ly reconoCiCng^ coih/ c^yUectConyto-the/ genercd/ ledger. 

EicceptXony See/dbxyve/. 

Mar\agement'y1ie^on&e/. SeeManagevnei^XfyCorrecCXAfe/Actton/plan/ 
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6. Inquire of management that all employees who have access to cash covered by a board or insurance policy for 
theft. 

M(M\cLg€4ne^cL&ie*i:ed/th£U:(iU/e^i^loye^\uh(rh^e'(uxe^tky'ca4ih/a,r&'COve'red/ 
hy ayhoyid/<yr 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under "Bank 
Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates 
randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). Alternately, the 
practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, 
such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain supporting dociunentation for each 
of the 10 deposits and; 

M)e/roA^dondy ielecCed/2 deposit dxtC&i'{or ecLch/ofthe/ 5 ibtmibieiecTeci/ 
for procedure/#3. Oi^£/hcii^k'(uxx>uv\tor\ly hud/1 deposit for the/yeur, therefore/ 
we/oy\ly reciue^iCed/documentation/for 9 depo^CCy We/uiked/munugementforthe/ 
HApporttng/ documentutXon/ for euch/ of the/ depoiity, Kmvever wiunu^ement Mjuy 
only uble/lxrloccUe/depoiWmfbrmatCon/for 2 of the/9 depoUty recfueiCed/. 

ExeeptXony See/dbove/. 

MunugemefyKe^onAe/: See/Mci4\ugc¥n&nt'yCorrectX\fe/ActXon/Vlun/ 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

We/noted/nO'receipCy\uere/reciuCred/to-he/C'^iued/forthe/2 depoUty, uyone/wuy 

for icde^tUiC'Ui\d'One/wuyuUe\h0ng/{und/depoitt. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-munbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection documentation to the 
deposit slip. 

Mcn/nugementprovCded/ no-other documetxCCon/e^cceptforthe/depo^Mp. 

^xeeptXony See/dbxyve/. 

Munugement'y'Re&pon&ec See/MunugevnenXfyCorrectXA^e/AcCCon/Plun/ 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

We/ noted/ no- efcceptCony. 

d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location (within one 
week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less than $100). 

We/ Yuoted/ no- eicceptXony. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

We/ were/ undble to- truce/ 2 depoiiCy from/ the bunk/ ytutewient to- the gevieraX/ 
ledger. 

ExeeptCony Seedbove. 

Mo/nugementyKe^onye: SeeMunugemenXfyCorrectOifeActXon/Plun/ 
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Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 
purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for die fiscal period and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

We^ ohtcUned/ a/ of locaXXon^ thccC prooe^ for period/. 
Th^re/wa^one/loccctton/list^d/. 

E)ccepttony hJone/ 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of diose employees involved with non-payroll 
purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if the 
agency has no written policies and procediues, inquire of employees about their j ob duties), and observe that job 
duties are properly segregated such that: 

for the/ loccUtoyv listed/, we/ ohtaUvied/ CL/ ICiting/ of enploye&y CrxMyh/ed/ wiXh/ nor\r 

payrdU/ purchcv&Cng/ and/ payment fiAncttoni'. We/ CnqaCred/ of employees dbotAt 
theirJob-dAAXie^txy-determine/how dutXeyare/iegreg<xX:ed/. 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and placing an 
order/making the purchase. 

We/ noted/ there/ are/ at lea^ two- employees Crwol^/ed/ Cn/ irdX^aXXru^ cv parchoie/ 

recfue&t, appro^/Ong^a-ptArcha^, and/placirig^an/ord^r/mcdUng/a/parcha^. 

ficceptCony hJone/ 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

We' noted/ there/ are at lea&t two- employees irwoiU/ed/ LT/ proce^Ung/ and/ 
opprovCrig^paymenti'tO'Vendory. 

f)cceptCony hJone/ 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor files, unless 
another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

payments are/ proce^&ed/ hy an/ outUde/ CPA firm^ therefore/ there are no-
employees re^onMhle for proceaCng/ payments that are aX&o- aUowed/ to- add/ 
or modify vendor fde^. 

ficceptCony hJone 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed checks to 
an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. [Note: Exceptions to controls that 
constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); should 
not be reported.] 

The/employee reSpon&Oyle for ^(/gy\ir\^ (d^ieeh^ either maily the cheeky or giNey 
them/to-an/employee, who-Cynotrejponiihlefyrprocei^Cng'paymenCy, to-mail'. 

fxeeptCony See above. 

Mariagement'y'Reypon&e. See/maA\agement'ycorrect(Neacttoy\/planL 
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10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction population 
(excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that the population is 
complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting documentation for each 
transaction and: 

We^ obtiuned/ the^ ey\XXtyy non^payroU/ poptAlccttavx/. 
Kondxyrvdy iel&cC&d/ 5 dlibur'ie4ney\Xi' avid/ ohCOivied/ the/ HApporttvig/ 
d/yc4MyievitaXt(yy\/. 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original invoice/billing statement. 

We/ noted/ no- e)ccepttony. 

b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initiaFdate, electronic logging) of 
segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

We/ noted/ no- efcceptCony. 

11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards (cards) for 
the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the 
cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

We/ohtaA4\ed/a^llSttv\^{hyrnmaviagevvievitofcdX/acC(\fe/ccu'dy{br the/fUccd/pevCod/. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were used 
during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each card (for a debit 
card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, and: 

We/randx>rnly selected/5 cardy^hym/the/We/randorydy iele<Xed/1 moy\th/{br 
each/ofthe/5 cord^to-te^cM^d/ohtaCned/Xhe/HApportiA^g/d/yciAvyientatUim/. 

a) Observe that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports for excessive fuel 
card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved), by someone other than the 
authorized card holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain public 
officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not be reported.)] 

We/ noted/ no- e-^coeptiony. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

We/noted/Lvyteveyt char^ey OYif 3 of the/5 cardyteited/. We/were/not provided/ 
ytaCevnevityfor 1 of1he/5 cardy. 

EicceptCony See/dbxyve/. 

ManagemevKfyKeypon&e/: See/mav\£ig€vnev\tyc<yr're<tLye/actCoy\/playiL 
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Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, randomly 
select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain supporting 
documentation for the transactions (i.e., each card should have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each 
tr^saction, observe that it is supported by: 

M)e/r(XY\Aomly iele<Xjs^diLtray\ACiCCiov\^fv'(ym/'&rie/mOY\:^^hele<Xi&d^ were/ 
(yyx/ecich/ofthe^^ ^t(XCamev\X:yte^&d/. We^\uere/yiotpKOvCded/iCaX^4ne4^Xy 

{or 1 ofXhe/S ccu-dy. We/oh{uCne^H^portU^doct^me4^XX!UtOfv{brth£/trcLvi&ayCtioni' 
^elected/. 

(1) An original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Of 13 trayn&a,ctC<yny1^^ed/, we^noted/^ V)eve/v\otyUpporVed/hy ori^iviod/iZemi/^ied/ 
re<>eCptyCd£'V\XXfyCng^pre<>Cie^ whx!U:^wci^piM'chcL&ed/. 

E)cceptCony Se^cibove< 

yKe^on&e^ 5ee/m.ana^emenC'i'C<>rr6ct£ve/actum/pZiwvs 

(2) Written documentation of the business/public purpose, and 

Of 13 tra/fOAacCum^' ts^ted/, we/ noted/ 9 were' not HtpporVed/ hy dooiA^me^tCaXXon/ 
ofthe^ huM^\£^i/publUypiMp>o^. 

E)cceptCony See/dbove/. 

MorLo^emenC'i'Reipc^rue^ 56e'm.cma^emeri;C'yc<>rrect£ve/ctcCu>vvpla^ 

(3) Documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). 

We/ noted no- chcwg^{br mecdy. 

For missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management 
had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is subject to 
increased scrutiny. 

Mono^emefiC' did/ not appear to hcwe/ compenAaXX4\g/ controls On/ place/ to 
addre^ ml^^Cn^ receCpty 

ExceptCony See/dbove/. 

Mcmo^ement'i'Tleipcm^ See/mcincLgemee\XfycorrecCXAfe/actLOY\/pla4^ 

60 



Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 
Report on Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
June 30, 2019 

Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursement (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly select 5 
reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of each 
selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

M)e>' ohtuCned/ a/ of ctXb Trnvei/ CLnd/ reimhtA^riemeviti' 
mo-na^ement: )^Je/ra4^AomXy iele<X(sd/5 

relccCed/ HApportiyig^ documeA^taXtovx/. 

E)cceptCony hJone^ 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established eidier by the State of 
Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

We^noted/2 K&Cmburieme4^X:ytlxccC\uer&'hcLied/oy\/a/per dX.em/. We^not&d/Xhoie/ 
y'lXCe^Mfere^LA^cori^luxnce^wCthlh^y'aX^e'iCublUhed/hythe^ll. S. <^&viercCi 
Se^LceyAdmlnCiCraXXAyyx/. 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized 
receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

We' noted/ 3 retmifrufiemen^j' Mfere/ hcLied/ on^ actual/ cojtj'. )/0e/ noted/ 2 

KewnlbursemenCj' were' supported/ hy orCgtnaX/ itemized/ receCpty, and/ we/ were' 
Yuyt ̂ tife^Htpparttn^dAycume^ntatCon/for'1 ofthc'reimhur^ementy 

E}cceptCony Secdbove/. 

McAA\agcmcnt'yKeipon&e/: Sec mavuxgc&neA^yc<yrrc<X(^/cactCoy\/pla4^/ 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for meal 
charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals participating) and other 
documentation required by written policy (procedure #lh). 

Wc noted/ no- e^ccepttony. 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the person 
receiving reimbursement. 

Wc noted/ no- ej^ceptum^. 
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Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and supplies, 
leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. Alternately, the 
practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. Obtain management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the 
listing, excluding die practitioner's contract, and: 

We//mm/ma-na^ement" of tKot" 
were'<yr the/fUccU/perCod/. We'rtM^dotyiXy selected/5 
confracCy/mm/tKe' 

a) Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., solicited quotes or 
bids, advertised), if required by law. 

We/ dCd/ not ld/eY\Xt(y o-fiy eontrouXy Crv otAr icwiple/ Xhcct were/ nd^'ect to- the/ 

LotAX'UciruA/piAhlic/3Ld/Law. 

b) Observe that the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or law (e.g., 
Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

We/ noted/ none/ of 5 contracCy ocppeared/ to- hcot/e/ heev\/ approved/ hy 
3oard/. 

E}cceptton&^ See/dbove/. 

Mariag€4ner\t'y'Re^on&e': Se^ryia4\ag-e4nenXfyc<yrrect(ve/actton/plari'. 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terms provided for such 
an amendment. 

None/ofthe/5 contra,cCyielected/were/oriended/durLng/the/year. 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the supporting invoice, 
agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related payment agreed to die terms 
and conditions of the contract. 

We/randorydy selected/one/payment for ea,dh/of the/5 controAXyarui'OhCuCned/ 
^rie/yApportiri^lAyformccCiont. One/vendor appeared/to-Juwe/notheer\/paXd/at 
aXidowCng/the/year, forthe/other^ contratCy, we'noted/the'Crwovce/agreed/ 
to- the/ covtract termy, and/ the/ vrAfOice/ and/ related/ payment agreed/ to- the' 
termy and/ condCtCony of the' contract. 

Eiccepttony: See/ahove/. 

ManagementyKe^on&e': Sec vviaru^^ernerty corre<XLVcouXion/plan'. 

62 



Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 
Report on Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
June 30, 2019 

Payroll and Personnel 

16. Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees/officials, obtain related paid salaries 
and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

We^ohtcU4\e^cL/ll&tX^^(yfe*vVfyloyee^ele<X&d/offtc^.(ily<ioLrLA^th£/fiicaX/perC(yd/. Wc 
selected/ fO^e^ &fyiployee^ <M\d/ ohtuCned/ the' relccCed/ paid/ idioLrie^ <M\d/ penovmel' 
ftley One/ ewCployee/ ielecCed/ did/ not ^'ecei^fe/ coriipen&aXion' during XKe/ teaCin^ 
period/. Maru^^emer\t did/notprxAficLe/aAAthorO^ied/poLy rate^. 

E}cceptCony So/Q/dho^e/. 

McM^agefvient'y'Re^on&e/: Se^vyiOA^y^^-g-emertycorrectXAfe/actCoyx/plaA^. 

17. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees/officials selected under #16 above, 
obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and; 

McLnageme4^t did/not provide/the/aXtenda4\ce/recordy {or XMJO- eniployeey ielecCed/ 
for teyCin^ dAAring^the/te'&ttn^period/. 

a) Observe that all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., vacation, 
sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible to earn leave and does not document 
his/her attendance and leave. However, if the elected official is earning leave according to policy and/or 
contract, the official should document his/her daily attendance and leave.) 

Mctnagement did/ not provide/ the/ aXtendctnoe/ recordUy for two- e/rtployeey 
iele<ted/forteMng/during/the/te'Sting'^period/. Ofthe/tWo-e^fVployeei'that were/ 
provided/, we/noCed/no-etcceptCon'. 

E)cceptiony. See/dbove/. 

Ma4vagement'y1ie^on&e/. Se^ryicir£i'gemey\tycorre<XLVe/actioy\/pla4VL 

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees/officials. 

We/ noted/ no-mperviior approvdV. 

E}cception&^ See/above/. 

MoAvage'ment'ylie^on&e/. See'moA^^ige^nertycorrective/actCon/ploAV: 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's cumulative leave 
records. 

Ma-na^emenf did/ not provide/ the/ attendance/ recordy for two- ewVployeey 
ieletCed/for testing/during/the/testt4vg^period/. Ofthe/tWo-eifVployeey that were/ 
provided/, we/noted/no-etcceptCon'. 

^)cceptiony. See/dbove/. 

Ma^\age^ifn&ntyllesponke/. See/vviarwL^e^merjty cen-retCXAfe/oLCtion'pla^ 
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18. Obtain a listing of those employees/officials that received termination payments during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees/officials, obtain related 
documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination payment calculations, agree the 
hoius to the employee/officials' cumulate leave records, and agree the pay rates to the employee/officials' 
authorized pay rates in the employee/officials' personnel files. 

We' ohtcUne^ o/ <yf employees wKo* r&ceOi^ed/ a/ term.tna.tum' paymeftt" 
the^ yecw. We/ AelecCect' two- &¥nployee^ CLnd/ ohtulned/ the/ relccCed/ 

tiocwme^xTctCum'. did/ Y\jffV provide/ oui:G^ior\/^f&d/pay rate^. ^Oe/ noted/ 
loo-oCHer e^cc^ttonyto-te^mCi^xiCLOnpaymenCy 

E}ccepttony See/ dbove/. 

Mo-no^ement'i'TleApon^" See/M(M^/;ige*yLev\t'yCorre<XXve/AcCCon'Plan'. 

19. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, retirement 
contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers' compensation premiums have been paid, and associated 
forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

We/ are/ andble/ to accept y repre-ientatCony. See/ auditor'y report on 
{tnancied/iti!Ctemey\tyforthe/year ended/June/30, 2019. 

E}cceptCon&^ hJone/ 

Ethics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" above, 
obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

)/0e/6btau\ed/the/eihix:^dxnaMvie^atLonfrornYnccna^e/mentfor^^hele<cted/ 
eynployee^offCciody. 

a. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of ethics training 
during the fiscal period. 

Twoofthe/five/e^yiployeey^officicilydid/not complete/their ei^hic^trainCng/ 
wCthinthe/fi&ccd/perCod/. 

E)cceptCony See/dbove/. 

M(Mva^ement'y1ie^on&e/: See/rnanage4ney\t'ycorrectLVe/acttonplan'. 

b. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official attested through signature verification 
that he or she has read the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period. 

Mcuvagement did/ notprovide/. 

E)cceptLony. See/above/. 

Ma^\x?i^e>mentylleypOYike/. See/vyiuyu;L^emey\Xfycorrective/actConplan 

64 



Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 
Report on Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
June 30, 2019 

Debt Service 

21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is 
complete. Select all bonds/notes on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond 
Commission approval was obtained for each bond/note issued. 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's representation that 
the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting documentation 
for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve balances and payments to diose required by debt 
covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

M(M^ag€me^lUt^^yuy'hondi/noti2^out:iCci4xdX&xg^atthe/e4^d/ofth^fv&c<iiperCod/. 

Other 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting 
documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the 
district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

did/ »aof prtTVuic a/ of mUcCpprOprCccCCoriy. 

24. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 concerning 
the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

We^\ue*v^tAA\ahle/to-ohie*^e^t^po^C&^yiotCce< We^obierve^^the/required/notice^ 
poiCed/aY\/'the/Towy\/ywehiit&'. 

^)LceptCcn\y. See/ cdyovc. 

McLncL^emer\f yRe^on&e^ See/mxM\cL^eme4^ycorre<XL\fe/CLctCor\/plcLriL 

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression 
of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures; odier matters might have come to our 
attention that would have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, this report 
is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA 
as a public document. 

BOSCH & STATHAM. LLC 

Ruston, Louisiana 
May 7,2021 



Mayor Leslie Thompson 
Ph; 318-259-2385 
Fax:318-259-4177 

P.O. Box 610 
128 Allen Avenue 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 71251 

Town of Jonesboro 
Managements Response to 2018-2019 Audit Findings 

This audit report covers 6 months of the Bradford administration and 6 months of the current 
Thompson administration. 

1. 2019-001 Cash Receipt Books Not Properly Maintained 
• Currently, pre-numbered receipt books are being used for deposits. 
• Will keep log of what receipt books are issued to whom. 

• Effective immediately, daily receipts will be reconciled to match the deposit 
sheet. 

2. 2019-002 Utility Fund Accounts Receivable Includes Bad Debts 
• Utility clerks have combed through all accounts to identify delinquent accounts. 

Accounts not being paid timely were placed on payment (hardship verified) plans. 
Those defaulting on payment plans are required to make total payment or have 
services discontinued. Those customers can meet with the Mayor's designee to 
justify why more than one attempt to complete the payment plan is justified. It 
should take approximately one year to catch up on all of the bad debts if 
customers adhere to their payment plans. 

• Management believes the ledger of account receivables should be cleared up 
within one year. 

3. 2019-003 Non-compliance with Pubic Bid Law 

• The Town is currently in compliance with LRS 38:2212.1 as it relates to public 
bid laws. 

4. 2019-004 Failure in Internal Control Over Purchasing 
• Working with the Compliance officer is a purchasing agent to help in keeping up 

with the work load in the purchasing for the Town. 
• Insuring that all transactions are signed by at least two (2) people sign for all 

transactions. 



• We are strictly adhering to the basic internal control procedures established by the 
Town. 

• Under this administration, unauthorized purchases cannot be made. 
5. 2019-005 Overtime Pay 

• Overtime pay has been greatly reduced, however in certain departments there will 
always be a documented need for overtime. Under the current administration, 
overtime has all but been eliminated from Administration. 

• Fire has built in overtime due to the way the schedules run. 
• Police still seem to have excessive overtime but has hired a new officer in an 

effort to cut back on overtime. 
• Public Works has greatly reduced overtime although circumstances beyond 

anyone's control often make overtime necessary. 

• We are constantly evaluating measures to reduce overtime. 
6. 2019-006 Utility Billing Procedures 

tVk • Utility bills are regularly mailed to customers no later the 29 of the month and 
are due by the 15^ of the month. 

• The council has refused to recognize the critical need to install new meters to 
facilitate the reading of meters for the town; therefore we are still charging flat 
rates for utilities in the town of Jonesboro. 

• Until the town is authorized to acquire new water meters there is no foreseeable 
method to read all customer meters in the town. Many of the meters are 
unreadable and a large number have not been able to be located. We continue to 
work a creative method to resolve this issue. 

• We have established a committee of ten (10) community members to evaluate the 
system and make recommendations of ways to fix the issues which exist. 

7. 2019-007 Timekeeping Procedures 
• Supervisor is signing off on all time sheets before submitting for payment. 

• All overtime is being approved before submitting for payment. 
• No payroll is being processed without proper documentation. 

8. 2019-008 Non-compliance With Budget Act 

• We failed to prepare a budget message for 2018-2019 Budget and have made 
this correction by preparing a budget message for 2019-2020 Budget and will 
be sure to prepare one going forward. 

• We are working with Folden CPA firm to insure that all measures are taken to 
comply with the Budget Act and not to have deficits in various accounts. 

9. 2019-009 Failure to publish minutes 

• All required minutes of open meetings are being published in the official journal 
of the town on a timely basis and within the time constraints required by law. 

10. 2019-010 Financial statements Issued After Due Date 



• We rely on the CPA to prepare financial statements and to supply complete 
reliable information. 

• Financial statements are supplied to the Town Council monthly, on the Friday 
before the regularly scheduled meeting. 

• We continue to work with the CPA firm to insure that financial documents 
provided are both timely and accurate. 

11. 2019-011 Financial Statements Not Provided to Board of Aldermen 

• Financial statements are supplied to the Town Council monthly, on the Friday 
before the regularly scheduled council meeting. 

• 

12. 2019-012 Failure in Multiple Elements of Internal Control 

• The lines of communication are open with the following chain of command: 
Mayor, Mayor's Assistant. Clerk, Tax Collector. Public Works Director, and Fire 
Chief. All are available to problem solve, answer questions and trouble shoot as 
necessary. 

• Mayor's assistant will stand in on the rare occasion the Mayor is unavailable. 
• Department Head Meetings are held every Monday to discuss meaningful ways of 

moving the Town forward and keeping everyone abreast of critical information 
for proper management of the Town's business. 

• All staff is conscientious of and performing duties for which they were hired and 
often volunteer to assist in other areas when feasible or necessary as long as this 
does not violate policy. 

• The miscellaneous line item is being eliminated from the budget in all categories. 
• Completion of bank reconciliations has been turned over to the external CPA 

firm. 
• Deposits are being completed timely, (on a daily basis) and transactions are 

posted daily or as they occur. 

• The Fire Ad Valorem and Utility Funds will become a budget line item in an 
effort to reduce the possibility of overdraft. 

• All staff in the current administration is committed to being fully compliant and 
cooperative with auditors. 

• Will contact external CPA firm biannually to request observance of internal 
controls and seek recommendations for implementation of improvements in any 
areas deemed necessary. 

13. 2019-013 Lack of Segregation of Duties in Collections 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• All monies are currently being collected by cashiers. 

• Town Clerk reconciles all deposits with the exception of the Police Department. 
We will be talking to the Town Council about bringing the Police Department 
collections back to City Hall. 



14. 2019-014 Utility Accounts of Employees and Officials Paid Late 
• Employee accounts are being monitored to ensure timely payments. 

• Everyone, including employees is required to pay late fees and penalties when 
applicable. 

• The turn off policy is being applied to employees and customers. 
15. 2019-015 Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire Not Properly Executed 

• Town Clerk will scan a copy of the Compliance Questionnaire and Resolution for 
the questionnaire to the Auditor and CPA Firm. 

16. 2019-016 Board Minute Minutes were Not Properly Prepared or Retained 
• All board minutes since January 2019 are timely published in the town's journal. 
• Minutes are placed in the minute books and checked for accuracy 

17. 2019-017 Failure to Properly Prepare bank Reconciliations and Failure to submit to 
the Auditor, Records Including Bank Statements and Bank Reconciliations 
• We have hired an outside CPA firm, (the same firm that was appointed as Fiscal 

Administrator for the Town) who is doing monthly reconciliations. 
• All requests from the auditors will be responded to in a timely manner either by the 

CPA or the Town Clerk. 



Town of Jonesboro 
Mayor Leslie Thompson 
Ph: 318-259-2385 
Fax:318-259-4177 

P.O. Box 610 
128 Allen Avenue 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 71251 

May 13, 2021 

Response regarding Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures: 

We will take the report on Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures under advisement and take 
corrective action if deemed necessary and feasible. 

Amanda Womack, Town Clerk 


